

**CANNABIS COMPLIANCE BOARD  
STATE OF NEVADA**



JOE LOMBARDO  
*Governor*

ccb.nv.gov  
CARSON CITY OFFICE  
1550 College Parkway, Suite 142  
Carson City, Nevada 89706  
Main Line: (775) 687-6299

LAS VEGAS OFFICE  
700 East Warm Springs Road, Suite 100  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

ADRIANA GUZMÁN FRALICK  
*Chair*

TYLER KLIMAS  
*Executive Director*

**Date:** September 22, 2023

**To:** All Licensees and Other Interested Persons

**Subject:** Notice of Hearing for Consideration of Proposed Adoption, Amendment and/or Repeal of the Nevada Cannabis Compliance Regulations (NCCR) 1.145, 1.230, 5.025, 5.030, 10.010, 11.070, 12.030, 12.035, 12.040, and 12.045.

The Nevada Cannabis Compliance Board (CCB) will hold a public hearing for the purpose of considering the adoption, amendment or repeal of the regulation(s) stated below.

The public hearing will be held on or about the hour of 9:00 a.m. on October 24, 2023, at the following locations:

**Grant Sawyer State Office Building  
Room 2450  
555 East Washington Avenue  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101**

**Gaming Control Board  
Room 100  
1919 College Parkway  
Carson City, NV 89706**

The public may also view the meeting at the time noticed herein by live stream link located at:  
<https://ccb.nv.gov/public-meetings/>

**For Possible Action**

**Purpose:** The need and purpose of the proposed changes to the NCCR(s) is to repeal and streamline regulations identified pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order 2023-003.

**Regulation 1.145:** Repeal definition of "Physician."

**Regulation 1.230:** Repeal definition of "Taxpayer."

**Regulation 5.025:** Repeal of Regulation 5.025.

**Regulation 5.030:** Repeal of Regulation 5.030.

**Regulation 10.010:** Repeal of Regulation 10.010.

**Regulation 11.070:** An amendment to remove language for obsolete practice.

**Regulation 12.030:** An amendment to replace the cannabis establishment license number with the cannabis establishment ID number on required labeling by a cannabis cultivation facility.

**Regulation 12.035:** An amendment to replace the cannabis establishment license number with the cannabis establishment ID number on required labeling by a cannabis production facility.

**Regulation 12.040:** An amendment to replace the cannabis establishment license number with the cannabis establishment ID number on required labeling of usable cannabis and single-use cannabis products by a cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge.

**Regulation 12.045:** An amendment to replace the cannabis establishment license number with the cannabis establishment ID number on required labeling of cannabis products by a cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge.

The proposed changes to the regulation(s) will be considered by the CCB in accordance with the provisions of NRS 678A.460(1)(c), which provides that on the date and at the time and place designated, any interested person or their duly authorized representative, or both, shall be afforded the opportunity to present statements, arguments or contentions in writing, with or without the opportunity to present the same orally. Any person desiring to present statements, arguments, or contentions concerning the proposed regulation changes may provide such in writing to the Executive Assistant at [regulations@ccb.nv.gov](mailto:regulations@ccb.nv.gov) by 5 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting. If oral presentations are permitted, the persons intending to make such presentations must be personally present at the public hearing. Allowances for remote appearance may be made for those with disabilities only, but such requests must be made at least eight calendar days prior to the meeting.

These item(s) will be heard by the CCB at the October 24, 2023, meeting, and may be continued and heard at subsequent meetings of the CCB as required to effectuate the above-stated purposes.

The proposed changes to the regulation language will be posted on the Cannabis Compliance Board website <https://ccb.nv.gov/public-meetings/>. Any questions should be directed to [regulations@ccb.nv.gov](mailto:regulations@ccb.nv.gov).

Notice of this meeting was posted on the Internet through the Cannabis Compliance Board website <https://ccb.nv.gov/public-meetings/> and on the Internet website maintained by the Legislative Counsel Bureau <http://leg.state.nv.us/> and the Department of Administration website <https://notice.nv.gov/>. This notice has been emailed for posting at the following locations: 700 E. Warm Springs Road, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada; 1550 College Parkway, Suite 142, Carson City, Nevada; Grant Sawyer Building at 555 E. Washington Ave., Las Vegas, Nevada; and Gaming Control Board at 1919 College Parkway, Carson City, Nevada.

## Proposed Repeal to NCCR Regulation 1

New

~~Deleted~~

1.145-~~Repealed~~ ~~“Physician” defined.~~

1.230-~~Repealed~~ ~~“Taxpayer” defined.~~

1.145-~~“Physician” defined.~~ “Physician” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 0.040.

1.230-~~“Taxpayer” defined.~~ “Taxpayer” means cannabis establishments as required.

## Proposed Repeal to NCCR Regulation 5

New

~~Deleted~~

5.025-~~Repealed~~ ~~Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration certificate for cannabis establishment of same type; issuance of license; refund of fee if application not approved.~~

5.030-~~Repealed~~ ~~Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration license for cannabis establishment of same type or different type; submission of application by person in response to request for applications.~~

5.025-~~Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration certificate for cannabis establishment of same type; issuance of license; refund of fee if application not approved.~~ The Board may consider an application by a person who already holds a medical cannabis establishment license for no more than one license for a cannabis establishment of the same type if the person must meet all requirements of the NCCR and Title 56 of the NRS.

5.030-~~Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration license for cannabis establishment of same type or different type; submission of application by person in response to request for applications.~~ Prior to requesting applications pursuant to NCCR 5.020, the Board will promulgate regulations on how a person who holds medical cannabis establishment license will submit an application for a cannabis establishment of same type or different type in response to a request by the Board pursuant to NCCR 5.020.

## Proposed Repeal to NCCR Regulation 10

New

~~Deleted~~

~~10.010- Repealed Establishment of minimum good manufacturing practices.~~

~~10.010- Establishment of minimum good manufacturing practices. NCCR 10.010 to 10.080, inclusive, set forth the minimum good manufacturing practices for the cultivation and preparation of cannabis and cannabis products for administration to humans.~~

## Proposed Repeal to NCCR Regulation 11

**11.070** 9. A cannabis independent testing laboratory shall file with the Board, in a manner prescribed by the Board, an electronic copy of the certificate of analysis for all tests performed by the cannabis independent testing laboratory, regardless of the outcome of the test, including all testing required by NCCR 11.050 to 11.065, inclusive, at the same time that it transmits those results to the facility which provided the sample. ~~The cannabis independent testing laboratory shall transmit an electronic copy of the certificate of analysis for each test to the Board by electronic mail at:~~

~~(a) If the test was passed, cannabislabpass@ceb.nv.gov; or~~

~~(b) If the test was failed, cannabislabfail@ceb.nv.gov.~~

## Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 12

### 12.030 Cannabis cultivation facility: Required labeling before sale of cannabis to another cannabis establishment.

1. A cannabis cultivation facility shall label all cannabis before it sells the cannabis to another cannabis establishment and shall securely affix to or include with the package a label that includes, without limitation, in legible English:
  - (a) The name of the cannabis establishment and its ~~license number or~~ cannabis establishment ID;
  - (b) If the cannabis establishment is operated by a dual licensee, the *cannabis establishment ID* number of the medical ~~cannabis establishment license of the~~ cannabis cultivation facility operated by the dual licensee;
  - (c) The batch number;
  - (d) The lot number;
  - (e) The date of final harvest;
  - (f) The date of final testing;
  - (g) The date on which the product was packaged;
  - (h) The cannabinoid profile and potency levels and terpenoid profile of the top three terpenes as determined by the cannabis testing facility, which may include the potential total THC but must not include any other calculated level of THC;
  - (i) The quantity of cannabis being sold;
  - (j) A warning that states: "THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS"; and
  - (k) A warning that states: "Keep out of Reach of Children."
2. The label required by subsection 1 for a container or package containing edible cannabis products sold by a cannabis production facility must be in substantially the following form:

#### TK's Cannabis Products

~~License Number~~ *cannabis*  
*establishment ID: 123-456-789-001-0001-RCXXX*  
~~Medical License Number~~ *medical cannabis*  
*establishment ID: 543-210789-000-0010 CXXX*  
 (if applicable)

**Production Run Number:** 1234

THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS

Keep out of Reach of Children

**Produced on:** 01/01/2020

**Best if used by:** 03/17/2020 (for edibles only)

**Cannabinoid profile:**

**Total THC content (mg):**

**THC content per serving +/- 15%: (for edibles only)**

**Serving size – 1 piece**

**This product contains concentrated cannabis  
 produced with butane.**

**Ingredients:** Wheat, Sugar, Milk Chocolate

**Allergy Warning:** Peanuts, Tree Nuts, Eggs, Wheat, Soy

**Net Weight:** 100mg

**12.035 Cannabis production facility: Required labeling of cannabis products before sale to retail store.**

1. A cannabis production facility shall label all cannabis products before it sells the cannabis products to a cannabis sales facility or another cannabis production facility and shall securely affix to or include with the package a label that includes, without limitation, in legible English and in a manner which must not mislead consumers:

- (a) The name of the cannabis establishment and its ~~license number or~~ cannabis establishment ID;
- (b) If the cannabis establishment is operated by a dual licensee, the *cannabis establishment ID* number of the medical cannabis ~~establishment license of the~~ facility for the production of cannabis operated by the dual licensee;
- (c) The production run number;
- (d) A warning that states: "Keep out of reach of children."
- (e) The date of production;
- (f) The cannabinoid profile and potency levels as determined by the cannabis testing facility,
- (g) If the product is an edible cannabis product, the expiration date;
- (h) The total amount of THC in the cannabis product, measured in milligrams;
- (i) The total amount of THC in each serving of the edible cannabis product;
- (j) A list of all ingredients and all major food allergens as identified in 21 U.S.C. § 343;
- (k) The net weight of the product;
- (l) If concentrated cannabis or a cannabis extract was added to the product, a disclosure of the type of extraction process used and any solvent, gas or other chemical used in the extraction process or any other compound added to the concentrated cannabis;
- (m) If the product is an edible cannabis product other than extracts and tinctures, the serving size; and
- (n) A warning that states: "THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS."

2. The label required by subsection 1 for a container or package containing edible cannabis products sold by a cannabis production facility must be in substantially the following form:

**TK's Cannabis Products**  
~~License Number~~ *cannabis*  
*establishment ID: 123-456-789-001-0001-RCXXX*  
~~Medical License Number~~ *medical cannabis*  
*establishment ID: 543-210789-000-0010-CXXX*  
 (if applicable)

**Production Run Number: 1234**

THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS

Keep out of Reach of Children

**Produced on:** 01/01/2020  
**Best if used by:** 03/17/2020 (for edibles only)  
**Cannabinoid profile:**

**Total THC content (mg):**  
**THC content per serving +/- 15%: (for edibles only)**  
**Serving size – 1 piece**  
**This product contains concentrated cannabis**  
**produced with butane.**

**Ingredients: Wheat, Sugar, Milk Chocolate**  
**Allergy Warning: Peanuts, Tree Nuts, Eggs, Wheat, Soy**  
**Net Weight: 100mg**

**12.040 Cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge: Required labeling of usable cannabis and single-use cannabis product.**

1. A cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge must affix to, include with, or supply through an electronic medium approved by the appropriate board agent each container or package containing usable cannabis sold at retail or ready-to-consume cannabis product and single-use cannabis product sold at consumption lounges, if not already included on the container or package, a label which must include, without limitation:

- (a) The business or trade name and the *cannabis establishment ID* ~~license number~~ of the cannabis cultivation facility that cultivated and sold the usable cannabis;
- (b) If the cannabis cultivation facility is operated by a dual licensee, the *cannabis establishment ID* number of the medical ~~cannabis establishment license of the~~ cannabis cultivation facility operated by the dual licensee;
- (c) The batch number;
- (d) The lot number;
- (e) The quantity sold, including the net weight measured in ounces and grams or by volume, as appropriate;
- (f) The name and address of the cannabis sales facility or cannabis consumption lounge;
- (g) The cannabinoid profile and potency levels and terpenoid profile as determined by the cannabis independent testing laboratory, which may include the potential total THC but must not include any other calculated level of THC;
- (h) A warning that states: "This product may have intoxicating effects and may be habit forming;"
- (i) The statement: "This product may be unlawful outside of the State of Nevada";
- (j) The date on which the cannabis was harvested;

- (k) A warning that states: “THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS”;
- (l) A warning that states: “Keep out of Reach of Children”; and
2. The label required by subsection 1 for a container or package containing usable cannabis sold at retail must be in substantially the following form:

**We Care Cannabis sales facility** or cannabis  
consumption lounge

**123 Main Street, Carson City, NV 89701**

**THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS**

16.7% THC 1.5% CBD 0.3% CBN

Myrcene 5.6 mg/g Limonene 5.1 mg/g

Valencene 3.5 mg/g

**MM’s Plant Emporium**

~~License Number~~ *cannabis*

*establishment ID: 123-456-789-001-0001-RCXXX*

~~Medical License Number~~ *medical cannabis*

*establishment ID: 543-210789-000-0010-CXXX*

(if applicable)

**Keep out of Reach of Children**

**Batch #: 1234**

**Lot #: 1234**

**Final harvest: 01/01/2020**

**WARNING:**

This product may have intoxicating effects and may be  
habit forming.

Net Weight: .25 ounces (7 grams)

**This product may be unlawful outside the State of  
Nevada.**



**12.045 Cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge: Required labeling of cannabis products.**

1. A cannabis sales facility and cannabis consumption lounge must affix to, include with, or supply through an electronic medium approved by the appropriate board agent each container or package containing cannabis products sold at retail or ready-to-consume cannabis product and Single-use cannabis product sold at consumption lounges, if not already on the container package, a label which must not mislead consumers and must include, without limitation:
  - (a) The business or trade name and the *cannabis establishment ID* ~~license number~~ of the cannabis production facility that manufactured and sold the product;
  - (b) If the cannabis production facility is operated by a dual licensee, the *cannabis establishment ID* number of the medical ~~cannabis establishment license of the~~ facility for the production of edible cannabis products or cannabis-infused products operated by the dual licensee;
  - (c) The production run number that accounts for all lot numbers of all cannabis used in the extraction of the concentrated cannabis or contained in the product, as recorded in the inventory control system of the cannabis production facility that sold the concentrated cannabis or product;
  - (d) The name and address of the cannabis sales facility or cannabis consumption lounge;
  - (e) The date on which the cannabis product was manufactured;
  - (f) If the product is an edible, a suggested use-by date;
  - (g) The cannabinoid profile and potency levels of the product, as determined by the cannabis independent testing laboratory that tested the product;
  - (h) For edible cannabis products, the total amount of THC in each serving of the product and a notice that the actual amount of THC in each serving may be within 15 percent of the stated amount;
  - (i) A list of all ingredients and all major food allergens as identified in 21 U.S.C. § 343.
  - (j) The concentration of THC in the product, measured in milligrams;
  - (k) The net weight of the cannabis or cannabis product;
  - (l) For edible cannabis products, a warning that states: “Caution: When eaten or swallowed, the intoxicating effects of this product may be delayed by 2 or more hours”;
  - (m) If concentrated cannabis or a cannabis extract was added to the product, a disclosure of the type of extraction process and any solvent, gas or other chemical used in the extraction process, or any other compound added to the concentrated cannabis or the cannabis extract;
  - (n) A warning that states: “This product may have intoxicating effects and may be habit forming”;
  - (o) A warning that states: “Keep out of Reach of Children”
  - (p) A statement that: “This product may be unlawful outside of the State of Nevada”; and
  - (q) A warning that states: “THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS.”

2. The label required by subsection 1 for a container or package containing concentrated cannabis or cannabis products sold at retail must be in substantially the following form:

We Care Cannabis Sales Facility or cannabis consumption lounge  
123 Main Street, Carson City, NV 89701

**THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS**

Cookie

**Net Weight:** 2 ounces (56 grams)

**Produced on:** 1/1/2020

**Best if used by:** 6/3/2020

**Cannabinoid profile:**

**THC content per serving +/- 15%:**

CAUTION: When eaten or swallowed the intoxicating effects of this product can be delayed by 2 or more hours.

Keep out of Reach of Children

**This product may be unlawful outside the State of Nevada.**

**Manufactured at:** KC's Kitchen

~~License Number~~ *cannabis*

*establishment ID:* ~~123-456-789-001-0001~~ *RCXXX*

~~Medical License Number~~ *medical cannabis*

*establishment ID:* ~~543-210789-000-0010~~ *CXXX*

(if applicable)

Production Run #5463

**INGREDIENTS:** Flour, Butter, Canola Oil, Sugar, Chocolate, Cannabis, Strawberries

**CONTAINS ALLERGENS:** Milk, Wheat

**Contains cannabis extract processed with butane.**

**WARNING:** This product may have intoxicating effects and may be habit forming.